
 

Meeting Agenda 
City of Mora, Planning Commission 

5:30 p.m. Monday, February 12, 2024 
Mora City Hall 

Mora City Hall 
101 Lake Street S 
Mora, MN  55051 
Kanabec County, 

Minnesota 

 

1 
 

City of Mora Code of Ordinances, Chapter 32: The role of the Planning Commission is to serve the City Council in an advisory capacity on 
matters relating to citizen requests for action, zoning changes and review, Comprehensive Plan reviews, capital improvement reviews, and 

other actions as deemed necessary to carry out the functions of a pro-active Planning Commission. 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call:  Jody Anderson  Sheldon Shepard  Lance Strande 
    Sara Treiber   Tim Dahlberg 

3. Adopt Agenda  (No item of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting. Board members may add 
items to the agenda prior to adoption of the agenda.) 

4. Minutes 
a. Approve minutes from February 12, 2024 

5. Open Forum 
(Individuals may address the committee about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum of fifteen (15) Minutes 
set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The Planning Commission will take no official action on 
items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.) 

6. Public Hearings:  
a. Conditional Use Permit request to allow dog training and a kennel at 129 Forest Ave. East 

i. Recommend approval/denial/table of request (Resolution PC2024-0311) 
 

7. New Business:  
a. None 

 
8. Old Business: 

a. Code Review: Mora MN Code of Ordinances: Special Provisions re: parking minimums § 150.500-
§ 150.505  

9. Reports (In addition to the items listed below, each board and staff member will be given the opportunity to share information.) 
 

10. Adjournment 
The next meeting of the Planning Commission is scheduled for 5:30 p.m. Monday, April 8, 2024. 

 

 



City of Mora Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

5:30 p.m. Monday, February 12, 2024 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St, Mora, MN 55051 

Page 1 of 3 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Chair Sheldon Shepard called to order the regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission at 5:30 p.m. Monday, February 12, 2024, in the Mora City Hall Council Chambers.  

2. Roll call: Present: Sheldon Shepard, Tim Dahlberg, Sara Treiber, Jody Anderson, Lance Strande
Absent: None
Staff present: Community Development Director Kirsten Faurie, City Administrator Glenn Anderson
Guests: Jennifer Yates, Jackson Yates, and others

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Dahlberg, seconded by Strande, and unanimously carried to adopt
the agenda as presented.

4. Approval of Minutes: MOTION made by Treiber, seconded by J. Anderson and unanimously carried
to approve the January 8, 2024 minutes as presented.

5. Open Forum: No one spoke during open forum

6. Public Hearings:

a. Text Amendment request to allow dog training in B-1 Central Business District:
Shepard opened the public hearing at 5:32 p.m. Faurie presented the Text Amendment
request by Jennifer and Jason Yates to include dog training as a permitted use in the B-1
Central Business District. Two emailed letters were received from business persons
operating within the B-1 district with concerns about the disruption dog training could have
to neighboring businesses especially considering the closeness and often shared walls of
businesses within the B-1 district. These letters were shared with commission members.

Jennifer Yates spoke during the public hearing explaining her business plan for her property
at 129 Forest Ave. E. She intends to host the Kanabec County 4H dog training program at the
facility in the evenings and offer one-on-one dog training sessions during the daytime hours.
Yates said her goal is to encourage responsible dog ownership among the community and
area youth.

Jackson Yates also spoke in support of the text amendment.

Jen Peterson spoke in support of the text amendment as allowing dog training businesses
would benefit the community by providing responsible activities for youth and improved
behavior of area dogs.

Jodi Bakke spoke in support of allowing dog training businesses as they would fill a service
gap in the community, and trained dogs are less likely to be nuisances to neighbors.

Joslyn Solomon spoke in support of the text amendment because well-trained dogs create
fewer nuisance issues. Solomon also noted how dog training services are wanted and
needed within the community.

Shepard closed the public hearing at 5:52 p.m.

Item 4a



City of Mora Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

5:30 p.m. Monday, February 12, 2024 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St, Mora, MN 55051 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

The Planning Commission discussed various impacts of allowing dog training at 129 Forest 
Ave. E. including noise, increased dog urine/feces/odor, etc. Treiber noted that while they 
may feel the business appropriate for that specific address, the Commission needs to 
consider if dog training businesses were permitted in B-1, how would affect all of the B-1 
district, not just this particular location. After further discussion the commission concluded 
that because of the proximity of businesses to each other in the B-1 district and often 
shared walls, dog training would be wise to have as a conditional use so permits could be 
granted on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Faurie noted that dog grooming and pet stores are currently listed as permitted uses in B-1;  
if the commission were to make dog training a conditional use, they may want to consider 
making other pet-related businesses conditional use as well. The commission agreed this 
would be something to consider and directed Faurie to come back to the commission at a 
future meeting with more information including how that change would affect existing 
business.  

i. MOTION by Treiber to approve Resolution No. PC 2024-0211 with an amendment: 

That the Planning Commission recommends approval of a text amendment to include 
dog training service as a conditional use with in the B-1 Central Business District.   

Seconded by Dahlberg and unanimously approved.  

7. New Business: None 

8. Old Business:  

a. Code Review: Mora MN Code of Ordinances: § 32.65-§ 32.76 “Planning Commission” 
As part of the Planning Commission’s goal to keep review of city code as a standing item on 
the agenda, the commissioners reviewed ordinances § 32.65-§ 32.76. After brief discussion, 
the commissioners decided to make no changes.  

9. Reports: Faurie gave a verbal report to the board explaining proposed legislation and national 
trends regarding minimum parking requirements. Earlier this year a Minnesota senator representing 
Minneapolis announced his intent to introduce a bill that would prohibit cities from imposing 
minimum parking requirements. This trend is increasing in popularity among large cities as a way to 
minimize barriers to development. If this passed, the City of Mora would be affected as it has 
minimum parking requirements. Several organizations, including the League of Minnesota Cities and 
Coalition of Greater MN Cities, have critiqued the proposal and are advocating for cities keeping 
local control of their parking requirements.  
 
City staff is keeping an eye on these developments and will keep the commission informed. 
 
Strande testified to his own challenges when he purchased a building in downtown Mora, and was 
told he would need to provide more parking or pay a fee which he felt was unnecessary. Dahlberg 
noted the commission also recently heard from Recovering Hope representatives about too much 
required parking. 



City of Mora Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

5:30 p.m. Monday, February 12, 2024 
Mora City Hall, 101 Lake St, Mora, MN 55051 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
It was suggested to include a review of Mora’s parking requirements as a future agenda item.  

10. Adjournment: MOTION to adjourn by Dahlberg, seconded by J. Anderson, and unanimously carried 
to adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at 6:43 p.m. The next regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission is scheduled for 5:30 p.m. Monday, March 11, 2024. 

 
 

_________________________                                 Attest: _________________________ 
Commission Chair                                                                      Kirsten Faurie 
        Community Development Director 



Item No. 6a 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

TO:  Planning Commission 
FROM:  Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Conditional Use Permit to allow dog training and a kennel at 129 

Forest Ave. East located in the B-1 Central Business District 
DATE:  March 11, 2024 

 
SUMMARY 

The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to consider a request for a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow dog training and a kennel at 129 Forest Ave. East located in the B-1 Central Business 
District. 
 
SITE & APPLICATION INFORMATION  

Applicant:   Jennifer & Jason Yates 
Property Owner:  Jennifer & Jason Yates 
Location: 129 Forest Ave. East, Mora MN 
Current Zoning:   B-1 Central Business District 
Adjacent Zoning:  North: B-1 Central Business District  

South: B-1 Central Business District 
    East: B-1 Central Business District 

West: B-1 Central Business District 
Comp. Plan Designation: Commercial 
Date Application Complete: February 22, 2024 
Public Hearing Conducted: March 11, 2024 
60-Day Review Period:  April 22, 2024 
 
DISCUSSION 

Jennifer Yates has submitted a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a dog training and 
kennel facility at 129 Forest Ave. East. The Planning Commission can choose recommend approval or 
denial of both uses, or of one but not the other.  
 
The City Code defines kennels as: Any lot or premises or portion thereof on which four (4) or more dogs 
and/or cats over six (6) months old are owned, bred, boarded or offered for sale. This shall not include 
pet shops, veterinary clinics or other such uses regulated herein. 
 
Yates has expressed her intent to open a new business at this location, The Responsible Dog LLC. She has 
included a document describing her business operation goals including a floor plan (attached). The 
intent is to offer dog training, grooming, and boarding.  
 
The Yates’ plan includes several measures to mitigate concerns about dog noise and waste: 

 Noise: The Yates have proposed replacing overhead doors on the east and north side of the 
building with insulated doors. Their site plan separates areas where dogs are being kept from 
the shared walls of other business with “buffer” spaces like a closet/bathroom/storage room.   



Page 2 of 4 

 

 Dog Waste: The Yates have proposed both indoor and outdoor “potty” areas for the dogs. The 
yates propose spraying the areas with an odor eliminator regularly and keeping feces picked up.  

 
It is important to note that a conditional use permit is a property right that “runs with the land.” That is, 
it attaches to and benefits the land and is not limited to a particular landowner. When the property is 
sold, the new landowner will have the continued right to the CUP so long as the conditions are met. A 
city can revoke a conditional use permit if there is not substantial compliance with conditions. 
 
Conditional Use Permits cannot have time limits imposed. If the Planning Commission wanted to place a 
time constraint on the use, it would instead grant an Interim Use Permit. State law authorizes interim 
use permits for: A temporary use of property until a particular date; or until the occurrence of a 
particular event such as a change in ownership of the property.  
 
The parcel (PID 22-02455-00) is adjacent to existing Mora businesses, and shares walls with Linda’s Hair 
Design and Prizm Tattoo.  
 
A public hearing notice was published in the February 26, 2024 edition of the Kanabec County Times and 
notices were mailed to all property owners within 350 feet of the subject property.  
 
As of March 6, staff received three letters of support of Yates and their business, three letters in 
opposition, and one phone call opposed to allowing more dogs in the city. It is also worth recalling the 
two letters received in opposition to the text amendment allowing dog training as a use in the B-1 
District received in February 2024.  
 
A request for comments was distributed to city staff. No concerns were identified by the City 
Administrator. The Building Official recommended ensuring the Yate’s proposed soundproofing 
measures be followed to avoid issues with the city’s noise ordinances. The Public Works Director noted 
concerns that the dog waste might generate complaints. 
 
FINDINGS 

Zoning Code Section 150.036 (Conditional Uses), Subd. E (Standards) states that, “In considering an 
application for Conditional Use Permit, the Planning Commission shall make its recommendation upon 
the finding that the application complies with each of the standards set forth below and, where 
applicable, any conditional standards for specific uses set forth in the provisions of a specific zoning 
district.” The city shall not grant a Conditional Use Permit without making certain findings. The criteria 
required for the granting of Conditional Use Permits are listed below with proposed findings for the 
Planning Commission’s consideration.   
 
Criteria #1 The use is consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning Code and the purposes 

and intent of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed 
use. 

Finding #1 The Zoning Code identifies the proposed use of dog training and kennels as Conditional 
Uses within the B-1 District. The proposed use is consistent with the intent of the zoning 
district. 

 
Criteria #2 The use is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and the policies thereof. 
Finding #2 The Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map identifies the subject site as Commercial. The 

Comprehensive Plan goals include promoting growth and diversification of Mora’s local 



Page 3 of 4 

 

economy. The proposed use complies with the Comprehensive Plan designation and 
policies. 

 
Criteria #3 The use will not cause undue traffic congestion or hazards. 
Finding #3 Based on the information provided by the applicants, the proposed use will not generate 

enough traffic to cause undue traffic congestion or hazards.    
 
Criteria #4 The use will be adequately served by public utilities and all other necessary public 

facilities and services. 
Finding #4 The property is served by municipal water and sewer, and other necessary public 

services. 
 
Criteria #5 The structure and the site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
Finding #5 This is an existing structure; the positioning of the proposed outdoor dog “potty” 

spots/relieving areas are located in the back and side areas of the property. However, if 
not properly managed the dog relieving areas could have an impact on neighboring 
businesses and residences in terms of appearance and odor. Inadequate sound proofing 
could also have an adverse effect on adjacent properties. Noise and pet mess concerns 
are less so for dog training and grooming when pets are only in the building for a short 
period. The concerns increased for dog kenneling/boarding which involve longer-term 
stays. Staff finds these concerns could be mitigated if approved with certain conditions.  

 
Criteria #6 The use will be sufficiently compatible by distance or screened from adjacent 

residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be depreciated in value 
and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land. 

Finding #6 This is an existing commercial structure with a residential home located in close 
proximity to the south; there is no nearby vacant land. The proposed use of the facility 
and site plan does not require any screening from residentially used or zoned properties. 

 
Criteria #7 The use will not jeopardize the public’s health, safety or general welfare. 
Finding #7 There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use will jeopardize the public’s health, 

safety or general welfare. 
 
OPTIONS 

1. Recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit with conditions as presented or amended. 
2. Impose a time constraint and recommend approval of an Interim Use Permit with conditions as 

presented or amended. 
3. Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit, providing specific reasons for the 

recommendation of denial for the written record. 
4. Make no recommendation at this time, deciding to either continue the public hearing for additional 

public comment or table the request for further consideration.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends discussion of if it will approve/deny dog training, dog kenneling, or both. If choosing 
approval of either, carefully review conditions and decide whether to grant as a Conditional Use or 
Interim Use.   
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Motion to approve Resolution No. PC 2024-0311 with conditions as presented or amended. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Site map 
2. The Responsible Dog business description & site plan 
3. Proposed Resolution No. PC 2024-0311 

 



SUBJECT 

SITE 



Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
129 Forest Ave East Mora, MN 55051

Jason & Jennifer Yates

The Responsible Dog LLC
The Responsible Dog LLC is excited to be a more active and permanent business in Mora and
serve our community and the surrounding counties with research-informed dog training that has
the potential to impact the community positively. Between Jennifer and Jackson, we have
combined experience of 32 years in training dogs for a variety of sports, disciplines, and
behavioral modification. For the last 17 years, Jennifer Yates has been volunteering with the
Kanabec County 4-H Dog Project, teaching Obedience, Rally, Showmanship, Agility, Jumpers,
and responsible dog ownership. This is a unique program that offers youth from kindergarten to
one year past high school free dog training twice a week. It allows for youth to engage in
responsible dog ownership and learn invaluable life lessons.

Our “why” for our passion for dog training is rooted in dog-mediated personal development.
Dogs serve as excellent examples of how our nonverbal and verbal communication affects the
outcomes of our communication dynamics. Dogs offer us many opportunities to engage in
self-reflexivity and our dog-human relationships have shown to have profound impacts on our
mental wellbeing. We are passionate about combining these two pieces into our pedagogy.

Our facility is also an opportunity to establish an additional third space in Mora. Third spaces are
places where community members congregate away from home and work. Third spaces are
powerful community builders, and allow more opportunities to foster cultures of peace within our
communities. We hope that our facility can be utilized as a space that connects people and
continues to offer opportunities to build a strong community.

1



Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
129 Forest Ave East Mora, MN 55051

Floor Plan

This is an idea of the usage of 129 Forest Avenue East. The classes and training sessions will
be held in the previously car bay area. Which is separated from any adjourning business by two
concrete walls and one sheetrock wall.

Noise was noted as a concern of local business, our commitment to noise mitigation is as
follows - the overhead door on the east side of the building which is on South Lake St will be
replaced with an insulated door. The overhead door on the North side of the building (Forest
Ave) will be replaced with an insulated door. The shared walls between 129 Forest Ave E. are
either a bathroom or additional space wall. While dogs are at the facility, they are being engaged
in learning, and barking will not be tolerated, dogs will be redirected and taught appropriate
ways to express their emotions.

Grooming space will be allotted and utilized by us and potentially hiring a groomer in the future.
Boarding space is proposed for use in board and train options for clients to leave their dogs with
us for one-on-one training from one to seven weeks. The dogs would be monitored while being
boarded. Staff will be onsite with dogs while being boarded.

The additional space will be going through an additional conditional use process at a later date.

There will be an indoor potty area designated in the floor plan of the building space as well as
an outdoor potty area (filled with pea gravel) along the East side of the building and a larger
space outside behind the building on the west side. The feces will be cleaned up by the owner
of the dog and the area will be sprayed with an odor eliminator daily along with being sprayed

2



Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
129 Forest Ave East Mora, MN 55051

with water to wash out the urine as needed. The biosecurity of the facility to lessen dog
diseases is also very important to us and to inform the dog community of potential hazards to
watch for in the environment.

Parking
Parking will be available in front of the building, along Forest Ave, and South Lake St.

Summary of Business Activities and Scope
● Training classes will be held generally in the evenings during the work week from 5-9

p.m. Schedule of classes will vary widely from month to month. Some examples of the
classes that will be held are as follows:

○ Puppy 101
○ Obedience 1,2,&3
○ Rally
○ Confirmation Training
○ Canine Good Citizen (titling class that prepares dogs to be evaluated by a CGC

evaluator and be awarded a CGC title) this is the first step to therapy dog training
○ S.T.A.R. Puppy (Socialization, Training, Activity, Responsibility)
○ Foundational Agility
○ Good Behavior Boot Camp
○ Dog Conditioning and Wellness
○ Trick Dog Training
○ Educational programs for first-time dog owners

● One-on-one training will be held during the day by appointment
● Weekend seminar-style events will be discipline-focused and will be throughout the

calendar year, not on a set schedule. These types of events will bring people from
around the country to attend and will bring in a lot of business for surrounding
businesses.

● The front office/storefront space will provide training equipment, treats, toys, enrichment
activities, etc. that are harder to access north of the cities.

● Online Pay-per-view and free educational courses
● Remote Training via Zoom for clients outside of Minnesota
● Seasonal activities and celebrations that will be open to the public
● Open training times for clients to use the training space outside of classes/one-on-one

sessions

3



RESOLUTION NO. PC2024-0311 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA, 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A DOG TRAINING AND 

KENNEL FACILITY TO BE LOCATED AT 129 FOREST AVE. EAST IN THE B-1 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
AS REQUESTED BY JASON & JENNIFER YATES 

 
WHEREAS, Jason and Jennifer Yates applicants and property owners submitted an application dated 
received and considered complete on February 22, 2024 for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a dog 
training and kennel facility to be located at 129 Forest Ave. East in the B-1 Central Business District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property upon which the request is being made is located at 129 Forest Ave. East and is 
legally described as: 

 
PID 22.02455.00 

That part of Lot 3, Auditor's Subdivision No. 18, Kanabec County, Minnesota, which lies Easterly and 
Southerly of the following described line: Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 3; thence on 

an assumed bearing of South 89 degrees 58 minutes 45 seconds West along the North line of said Lot 3 a 
distance of 52.83 feet to the point of beginning of the line to be described; thence South 0 degrees 19 
minutes East 35.0 feet; thence South 89 degrees 58 minutes 45 seconds West 0.68 feet to point "A"; 

thence South 0 degrees 19 minutes East 32.07 feet thence South 89 degrees 58 minutes 45 seconds West 
27.98 feet to point "B"; thence South 0 degrees 01 minutes 15 seconds East 0.33 feet to point "C": thence 
South 89 degrees 58 minutes 45 seconds West 20.6 feet to the West line of said Lot 3 and said line there 

terminating. 
  

Together with an easement for ingress and egress over and across the South 12 feet of Lot 2, Auditor's 
Subdivision No. 18, Kanabec County, Minnesota. 

 
WHEREAS, notice was provided and on March 11, 2024 the Planning Commission conducted a public 
hearing regarding this application, at which it heard from the Community Development Director and 
invited members of the public to comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has made the following findings as required by Zoning Code 
§150.036 Conditional Uses, Subd. E Standards: 
 
Criteria #1 The use is consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning Code and the purposes 

and intent of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed 
use. 

Finding #1 The Zoning Code identifies the proposed use of dog training and kennels as Conditional 
Uses within the B-1 District. The proposed use is consistent with the intent of the zoning 
district. 

 
Criteria #2 The use is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and the policies thereof. 
Finding #2 The Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map identifies the subject site as Commercial. The 

Comprehensive Plan goals include promoting growth and diversification of Mora’s local 
economy. The proposed use complies with the Comprehensive Plan designation and 
policies. 

 



Criteria #3 The use will not cause undue traffic congestion or hazards. 
Finding #3 Based on the information provided by the applicants, the proposed use will not generate 

enough traffic to cause undue traffic congestion or hazards.    
 
Criteria #4 The use will be adequately served by public utilities and all other necessary public 

facilities and services. 
Finding #4 The property is served by municipal water and sewer, and other necessary public 

services. 
 
Criteria #5 The structure and the site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
Finding #5 This is an existing structure; the positioning of the proposed outdoor dog “potty” 

spots/relieving areas are located in the back and side areas of the property. However, if 
not properly managed the dog relieving areas could have an impact on neighboring 
businesses and residences in terms of appearance and odor. Inadequate sound proofing 
could also have an adverse effect on adjacent properties. Noise and pet mess concerns 
are less so for dog training and grooming when pets are only in the building for a short 
period. The concerns increased for dog kenneling/boarding which involve longer-term 
stays. Staff finds these concerns could be mitigated if approved with certain conditions.  

 
Criteria #6 The use will be sufficiently compatible by distance or screened from adjacent 

residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be depreciated in value 
and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land. 

Finding #6 This is an existing commercial structure with a residential home located in close 
proximity to the south; there is no nearby vacant land. The proposed use of the facility 
and site plan does not require any screening from residentially used or zoned properties. 

 
Criteria #7 The use will not jeopardize the public’s health, safety or general welfare. 
Finding #7 There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use will jeopardize the public’s health, 

safety or general welfare. 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MORA, 
MINNESOTA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
That the Planning Commission recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit with the following 
conditions. Violation of any of the following conditions shall constitute grounds for revocation of the 
Conditional Use Permit: 
1. The Conditional Use Permit shall be utilized and all conditions shall be met within one year of 

recording or the Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void. 
2. The applicant shall apply for and obtain a building permit prior to any structural improvements. 
3. The applicant shall apply for and obtain a sign permit prior to installing any new or replacement 

signage. Signage shall be in compliance with Zoning Code sections 150.210-150.227. 
4. Use of the site shall be generally consistent with the floor plan stamp dated “Received Feb. 26, 

2024.” Notably any areas where animals are being kept shall be separated from walls adjoining 
other businesses with “buffer” spaces such as a bathroom, office, or storage area.  Any major 
deviations, as determined by city staff, shall require further review by the Planning Commission and 
approval from the City Council.  



5. Any un-insulated overhead doors on the exterior of the building shall be replaced with insulated 
doors.  

6. Outdoor dog potty/relieving areas shall not be permitted on front/Forest Ave. side of the building, 
but will be limited to the south and east sides of the building. Feces will be picked up twice daily at a 
minimum; areas will be treated for odor a minimum of three times weekly.   

7. Allowed kennel uses shall be limited to dog boarding, including dog daycare or overnight stays; dog 
breeding or sales shall not be allowed.  

 
Adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Mora, Minnesota, this 11th day of March 2024. 

 
 

Jody Anderson  __________    Lance Strande  __________ 
Sheldon Shepard __________    Tim Dahlberg  __________ 
Sara Treiber  __________ 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ATTEST:  ________________________________ 
Sheldon Shepard      Kirsten Faurie 
Chair        Community Development Director 

 

 

 



Item No. 8a 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date March 11, 2024 
To Planning Commission 
From Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE Code review and communication regarding trends in minimum parking requirements 

SUMMARY 
The Planning Commission will hear from city staff regarding proposed legislation and national trends regarding 
minimum parking requirements as well as review the city’s current special provisions surrounding parking.  

DETAILS 
In January, Senator Omar Fateh (DFL- Minneapolis) announced his intent to introduce a bill (the “People Over 
Parking Act”) that would prohibit cities from imposing minimum parking requirements. If this passed, the City 
of Mora would be affected as it has minimum parking requirements. 

Several organizations, including the League of Minnesota Cities and Coalition of Greater MN Cities, have 
critiqued the proposal and are advocating for cities keeping local control of their parking requirements.  

On February 12, Planning Commission members suggested this may be a good moment to review the city’s 
existing parking requirements.  

These items are for Planning Commission information with the intent to discuss further at a future meeting; no 
action is being requested.  

Attached to this memo are: 
• An article from the American Planning Association (October 2018) which reviews some of the trends 

and reasons city planners (especially of large urban areas) are re-evaluating parking requirements
• Statement from the League of Minnesota Cities opposing the legislation
• Statement from the Coalition of Greater MN Cities opposing the legislation
• Mora’s current Parking Requirements

RECOMMENDATIONS 
These items are for Planning Commission information with the intent to discuss further at a future meeting; no 
action is being requested.  

Attachments 
APA People over Parking  
LMC Advocating for Continued Local Control 
CGMC Press Release 
City of Mora Code  - Special Provisions re: parking & minimums § 150.500-§ 150.505 



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

� !!"#$%%&#'()#*+,!+-#.,/.,)01*%!2/3%0450675*85-9:(33;;<=>5?#5-9(3@A:B(<>"85-9<=AC;(>D*!5-9:A;=A>065-9::=:3A:AA<B(:3B@:;:>&559<(C=3C3<A@;:AB:B;@;>+0-9(C@C::<;=C;C<>1"5-9;=3@CDC.2-==02AC:32==D;2(A:@.AC;+:AE>1"-!9(C@C::<;=C;C<>!*#!"93(@@CB3=@(>!8!9F3A-!F:-(!F:EF3A-*+F:-B(:F:EF3A 0>#G#!8!9F3AH0F:-(:@C;(<3C<F:EF3AH4F:-I.-5&JKLM NOPQ�RSTOPQSU VOW�XQ�RSYOWPQSZQ[\]̂S_ỲQQPQWSabcdSOe]S_[O_Y[Of[g_̀ghPQWSUi jklmnopqrstuvo�KLM���w�xyuz{o|}o�~oy�oq�KL�yuz{o|}oroy�oqLM���w��������{�rp��uy��KL���{�rp��uy�LM���w��{pyy�y}�jp}p��yo�KL�{pyy�y}LM���w�ou�{o���oq��pq��y}�{pyyoq��pqo�qoo�p{�p��y}��pq��y}�qo���qovoy����uq�p�uq|p�{o�su���y}�
�{pyy�y}��r�u�oq�����X����X��X������ou�{o���oq��pq��y}

ky�oq��o�zuq|�uq��sqp�o



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

� !"#$$�%&�'# (("#)�*"+,-.(/�-&�0%!$(�1%""2$� 3 !(,#&($� !#�&-4�/-,#�(-�$-,#�-5�(/#�6%(+2$�5-!,#!"+�/-,#"#$$�7%$ 8"#7�3-3." (%-&9�*/-(-�6-.!(#$+�':;�<!6/%(#6($� &7�*"+,-.(/�1-.$%&=>!-.39?@�ABCDB@�EFGHIJKGJB�I�LMN�MO�PGNGBQR�SGTTBIFMLGQ�UIQ�BVFBDGBTPBW�NUB�WXIL�NDBTWQ�MO�DGQGTY�ZXLNGOIZGL@�DBTNQ�ITWW[GTWLGTY�UMXQGTY�ICMDWI\GLGN@]�̂MD�@BIDQ�GN�MCBDBW�NUB�XQXIL�PIDDMNQ�MO�NIV�GTPBTNGHBQ�ITW�WBHBLMFZBTNQX\QGWGBQ�OMD�DBQGWBTNGIL�FDM_BPNQ�[GNU�ICMDWI\LB�XTGNQ]�?XN�NUDBB�@BIDQ�IYMR�GN�NDGBW�I�WGCBDBTN�QNDINBY@̀aUB�PGN@�QLIQUBW�GNQ�ZXLNGOIZGL@�FIDJGTY�DBbXGDBZBTNQ�GT�PBDNIGT�FIDNQ�MO�NM[T]aUB�XQXIL�DINGM�MO�MTB�FIDJGTY�QFIPB�OMD�BHBD@�MTB�XTGN�[IQ�PXN�GT�UILO�OMD�LIDYBD�IFIDNZBTN�FDM_BPNQ�ITW[IQ�BLGZGTINBW�BTNGDBL@�OMD�FDM_BPNQ�[GNU�cd�MD�OB[BD�XTGNQ�LMPINBW�TBID�UGYUeODBbXBTP@�NDITQGN]�KM�ITW\BUMLWR�NUB�ZIDJBN�ZMQNL@�DBQFMTWBW�GT�NUB�BVIPN�[I@Q�FLITTBDQ�UIW�FDBWGPNBW]fFIDNZBTN�WBHBLMFBDQ�FDMFMQBW�FDM_BPNQ�[GNU�OB[BD�FIDJGTY�QFIPBQ]�aUIN�LM[BDBW�NUB�PMQN�MOPMTQNDXPNGMT]�EMR�QXPU�FDM_BPNQ�\BYIT�MCBDGTY�DBTNQ�\BLM[�NUB�ZIDJBNgQ�BQNI\LGQUBW�LBHBLQ]�hB[�QNXWGMIFIDNZBTNQR�[UGPU�N@FGPILL@�[BTN�OMD�ijRkdd�FBD�ZMTNUR�[BDB�\BGTY�MCBDBW�OMD�LBQQ�NUIT�ijRddd�FBDZMTNU]laUBDBgQ�WBmTGNBL@�I�TB[�N@FB�MO�DBQGWBTNGIL�XTGN�GT�NUB�ZIDJBN�NUIN�[B�UIHBTgN�QBBT�ZXPU�\BOMDBRl�QI@QhGPJ�SIYDGTMR�I�SGTTBIFMLGQ�FLITTGTY�PMZZGQQGMTBD�[UM�UIQ�DBQBIDPUBW�IFIDNZBTN�WBHBLMFZBTN�NDBTWQQGTPB�NUB�FIDJGTY�PMWB�PUITYB]�lnXNQGWB�MO�WM[TNM[TR�NUBDBgQ�\BBT�I�LMN�MO�GTmLL�WBHBLMFZBTN�[GNUPUBIFBDR�ZMDB�ICMDWI\LB�XTGNQ]laGTJBDGTY�[GNU�ZGTGZXZ�FIDJGTY�DBbXGDBZBTNQ�GQ�TMN�TB[]�oGNGBQ�UIHB�\BBT�mWWLGTY�[GNU�DBYXLINGMTQ�OMDWBPIWBQR�QMZBNGZBQ�DIGQGTY�NUBZR�QMZBNGZBQ�LM[BDGTY�NUBZR�ITW�QMZBNGZBQ�YGHGTY�HIDGITPBQ�OMDQFBPGmP�FDM_BPNQ]�pUINgQ�WGCBDBTN�TM[�GQ�IT�BHMLHGTY�XTWBDQNITWGTY�NUIN�XD\IT�LGOBQN@LBQ�IDB�PUITYGTYRNDIWGNGMTIL�FIDJGTY�DINGMQ�IDB�MXNWINBWR�ITW�NMM�ZXPU�QXFFL@�PIT�\B�IQ�UIDZOXL�IQ�NMM�LGNNLB]EM�NUBDBgQ�I�\XDYBMTGTY�ZMHBZBTN�MO�ZXTGPGFILGNGBQ�IPDMQQ�NUB�q]E]�DBWXPGTY�MD�BLGZGTINGTY�FIDJGTYDBbXGDBZBTNQ�OMD�PBDNIGT�LMPILBQ�MD�PBDNIGT�N@FBQ�MO�WBHBLMFZBTN�MD�BHBT�PGN@[GWB]laUGQ�[MXLW�UIHB�QBBZBW�GTPMTPBGHI\LB�_XQN�I�OB[�@BIDQ�IYMRl�QI@Q�rMTILW�EUMXFR�̂fsotR�I�rGQNGTYXGQUBWuBQBIDPU�tDMOBQQMD�GT�qoKfgQ�rBFIDNZBTN�MO�qD\IT�tLITTGTY�[UM�UIQ�QNXWGBW�ITW�[DGNNBT�I\MXN�FIDJGTYFMLGPGBQ�OMD�@BIDQ�ITW�GQ�PMTQGWBDBW�NUB�YMWOINUBD�MO�NUB�PXDDBTN�DBOMDZ�ZMHBZBTN]�vEBB�IT�IDNGPLB�\IQBW



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

 !�"#$�!%&�'  ()�*+,(#!-�+!.�/"%�0#/12�&&&345+!!#!-3 ,-645+!!#!-6789:6 ;/64+,(#!-4,#;%/"%,+416<645+!!#!-6789:6 ;/64+,(#!-4,#;%/"%,+416=3=

>?@ABCC�DE�FB?GGABH�IJB�KDLBM�NCB�G@?ECDGOP@DBEGBM�MBQBAPRKBEG�S@GCR?TB�UGV�W?XB@�YPZC�DC�APT?GBM�PE�GJB�>BEG@?A�YDEX�AD[JGO@?DA�ADEBV�\G�J?C�]DT̂TAB�CGP@?[B�?EM�?�@BCB@QBM�T?@OCJ?@B�CR?TB_�]NGEP�R?@XDE[�[?@?[BV�̀JPGP�TPN@GBĈ�FUa�S@TJDGBTGC�?EM�S@GCR?TBVbc%,�/"%�4+$/�/",%%�1%+,$)�+�d#!!%$ /+e'+$%.�$f+,/e-, &/"�+.c ;+;1� ,-+!#g+/# !�;+55%.�h/, !-�i &!$"+$�; f4#5%.)�/", j-"�;, &.$ j,;#!-)�f ,%�/"+!�9k8�%l+f45%$� m�; ffj!#/#%$�+;, $$�/"%�; j!/,1+..,%$$#!-� ,�.#$;j$$#!-�4+,(#!-�f#!#fjf�,%m ,f$3�n!.�/"+/�5#$/�"+$!o/�;+4/j,%.�+55�/"%�;#/#%$�/+(#!-+;/# !$30 ffj!#/#%$�+,%�,%m ,f#!-�/"%$%�,%-j5+/# !$�#!�+�c+,#%/1� m�&+1$3h f%�"+c%�.#/;"%.�4+,(#!-�f#!#fjf$�%!/#,%513�pjq+5 )�r%&�s ,()�#!�%+,51�789t�'%;+f%�/"%�u,$/�v3h3�;#/1/ �; f45%/%51�,%f c%�f#!#fjf�4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�;#/1&#.%)�+445#%.�/ �.%c%5 4f%!/$� m�5%$$�/"+!x)888�$wj+,%�m%%/3�y+/%�5+$/�1%+,�z+,/m ,.)�0 !!%;/#;j/)�&%!/�+�$/%4�mj,/"%,�+!.�%5#f#!+/%.�4+,(#!-f#!#fjf$�;#/1&#.%�m ,�+55�,%$#.%!/#+5�.%c%5 4f%!/$3h f%�"+c%�/+,-%/%.�/"%#,�,%m ,f$�/ �;%,/+#!�+,%+$� ,�.%c%5 4f%!/�.#$/,#;/$3�y%l#!-/ !)�{%!/j;(1)�%+,5#%,/"#$�1%+,�$;,+44%.�4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�#!�+�$" 44#!-�;%!/%,�; ,,#. ,�/ �+55 &�/"%�.%c%5 4f%!/� m�!%&fj5/#m+f#51�" j$#!-3�h4 (+!%)�|+$"#!-/ !)�/"#$�4+$/�$jff%,�%5#f#!+/%.�4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�m ,�m j,e45j$ej!#/�" j$#!-�4, }%;/$�#!�.%!$%,�4+,/$� m�/"%�;#/13h f%�"+c%�/#%.�!%&�4 5#;#%$�$4%;#u;+551�/ �$4j,�+q ,.+'5%�" j$#!-3�h%+//5%�/"#$�4+$/�$4,#!-�%5#f#!+/%.4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�m ,�+55�! !4, u/�+q ,.+'5%�" j$#!-�.%c%5 4f%!/$�#!�/"%�;#/1)�+f !-� /"%,4, c#$# !$3�n�; j45%� m�1%+,$�+- )�* ,/5+!.)�b,%- !)�&+#c%.�4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�m ,�!%&�.%c%5 4f%!/$; !/+#!#!-�+q ,.+'5%�" j$#!-�!%+,�/,+!$#/3�n5$ �#!�789~)�r%&�s ,(�%5#f#!+/%.�4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�m ,$j'$#.#g%.�+!.�$%!# ,�" j$#!-�#!�5+,-%�$&+/"%$� m�/"%�;#/1�&%55�$%,c%.�'1�/"%�$j'&+13�c%!�$ f%�$j'j,'$�+,%�. #!-�#/3�h+!/+�d !#;+)�0+5#m ,!#+)�,%f c%.�4+,(#!-�,%wj#,%f%!/$�%!/#,%51�5+$/1%+,�m ,�!%&�. &!/ &!�.%c%5 4f%!/$�+$�4+,/� m�+�!%&�� &!/ &!�0 ffj!#/1�*5+!3�n!.�/"#$�1%+,)�/"%|+$"#!-/ !)��303)�$j'j,'+!�; j!/1�*,#!;%��% ,-%o$)�d+,15+!.)�,%c#$%.�#/$�g !#!-�; .%�/ �$#-!#u;+!/51,%.j;%�4+,(#!-�f#!#fjf$3



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

� !"#!�$#%&'(�$)�*#!+$!�+�'!,�-).!/�)0�-)1&/&$%�+'.�')$�!-23+4&5!�$3!�*+#�+4�-6*3�+4�,!"7!�.)'!�&'�$3!2+4$8��4+%4�9+7&.�:+#$&'8�;+'$+�:)'&*+"4�.&#!*$)#�)0�2/+''&'(�+'.�*)--6'&$%�.!7!/)2-!'$<=>?@A?BC�DEFG?BC�HE?IJI�HJBKL+#M&'(�*)4$4�+�/)$�$)�16&/.8�+'.�$3+$�*)4$�646+//%�!'.4�62�#+&4&'(�$!'+'$�#!'$4<NOPQQQR�S)4$�2!#�46#0+*!�42+*!NTOPQQQR�S)4$�2!#�+1)7!U(#)6'.�(+#+(!�42+*!NVOPQQQR�S)4$�2!#�1!/),U(#)6'.�(+#+(!�42+*!NWXTR�Y3!�$%2&*+/�*)4$�#!'$!#4�2+%�2!#�-)'$3�0)#�2+#M&'(ZW[\R�]..&$&)'+/�*)4$�)0�+�6'&$"4�#!'$�+$$#&16$!.�$)�2+#M&'(;)6#*!̂�_)64&'(�L)/&*%�9!1+$!8�̀abcdefeghifi�jkl�mneopqY3#!!�2#&-+#%�0+*$)#4�+#!�.#&7&'(�$3&4�'!,�#!0)#-^rs�tuvuwx�yz{wy|}�~y�w���{w�v~y��w����~��y{�u��sY3!��!4!+#*3��'4$&$6$!�0)#�_)64&'(�]-!#&*+8�2+#$�)0�$3!� +43&'($)'8�9<S<U1+4!.�:)#$(+(!��+'M!#4]44)*&+$&)'8�64!.�4+$!//&$!�&-+(!#%�+'.�$+��#!*)#.4�$3&4�%!+#�$)�$+//%�2+#M&'(�42+*!�$)$+/4�&'�.&�!#!'$U4&5!.��<;<�*&$&!48�+'.�.!$!#-&'!.�$3+$�)6$4&.!�)0��!,��)#M�S&$%8�$3!�2+#M&'(�.!'4&$&!4�2!#�+*#!�0+#!�*!!.!.�$3!�2)26/+$&)'�.!'4&$&!4<:!+',3&/!8�$,)�.&�!#!'$�(#)624���Y#+'4�)#-8�,3&*3�2#)-)$!4�,+/M+1/!�*)--6'&$&!4�&'�S+/&0)#'&+8�+'.$3!�S3&*+()U1+4!.�S!'$!#�0)#��!&(31)#3)).�Y!*3')/)(%8�+�')'2#)�$�464$+&'+1/!�.!7!/)2-!'$�+.7)*+*%(#)62���3+7!�1)$3�*)'.6*$!.�-&../!U)0U$3!U'&(3$�46#7!%4�)0�2+#M&'(�64+(!�+$�+2+#$-!'$�2#)�!*$4�)'�$3! !4$�S)+4$�+'.�&'�S3&*+()8�#!42!*$&7!/%<�Y3!%�*)'4&4$!'$/%�0)6'.�)'!U�6+#$!#�$)�)'!U$3&#.�)0�42+*!4�4+$!-2$%<�Y3!�S3&*+()�*!'$!#�*)'*/6.!.��&$�&4�*#&$&*+/�$)�"#&(3$�4&5!"�2+#M&'(�+$�+�/!7!/�1!/),�*6##!'$�261/&*4$+'.+#.4<��s�v{y�x��{vyvu����{w�w{w�twx�y{w�x~u�vu��s]�7+#&!$%�)0�*)'7!#(&'(�$#!'.4�2)&'$�$)�$3!�2)44&1&/&$%�)0�0!,!#�*+#4�&'�$3!�06$6#!<��&�!.U#+&/�$#+'4&$�/&'!4*)'$&'6!�$)�1!�.!7!/)2!.�&'�-)#!�6#1+'�*!'$!#48�+'.�-&//!''&+/4�+#!�')$�.#&7&'(�+4�-6*3�+4�2#!7&)64(!'!#+$&)'4<�:!+',3&/!8�$#+'42)#$+$&)'�+/$!#'+$&7!4�+#!�2#)/&0!#+$&'(8�0#)-�2+44!'(!#�4!#7&*!4�46*3�+4�1!#�$)�*+#U43+#&'(�4!#7&*!4�46*3�+4��&2*+#<�Y3!'�$3!#!"4�$3!�2)$!'$&+/�)0�.#&7!#/!44�*+#4�+'.�$3!!�2+'4&)'�)0�#!$+&/�.!/&7!#%�4!#7&*!4<�s���vv���zu�w���w�{w���u���v���ww|���t~�zwxx�x�ytw�v��xv�{w�ty{xs�'�0+*$8��#!!'�;$#!!$�].7&4)#48�+�*)--!#*&+/�#!+/�!4$+$!�+.7&4)#%��#-8�+'+/%5!.�,3+$�&$�*+//4�$3!�$#+'42)#$+$&)'�#!7)/6$&)'����!'*)-2+44&'(�#&.!U3+&/&'(�4!#7&*!48�.#&7!#/!44�*+#48�!$*<���+'.�!4$&-+$!.$3+$��<;<�2+#M&'(�'!!.4�*)6/.�.!*/&'!�1%��a�2!#*!'$�)#�-)#!�&'�$3!�'!�$��a�%!+#4<��;!!���6$6#!UL#))0L+#M&'(8��:+#*3̂�,,,<2/+''&'(<)#( 2/+''&'( ̀ab¡ -+# 06$6#!2#))02+#M&'(� 2/+''&'( ̀ab¡ -+# 06$6#!2#))02+#M&'( ¢<¢��'�$3!�)/.�.+%48�%)6�16&/$�+'�+2+#$-!'$�+'.�%)6�!�2!*$!.�&$�'!!.!.�$,)�*+#48��4+%4�9)6(��&11%8�2#!4&.!'$)0�$3!��+$&)'+/�:6/$&0+-&/%�_)64&'(�S)6'*&/8�+'�+2+#$-!'$�$#+.!�+44)*&+$&)'�&'� +43&'($)'�9<S<��Y3)4!2+#M&'(�#+$&)4�+#!�)6$.+$!.�+'.�')�/)'(!#�7+/&.�&'�+'%��6#&4.&*$&)'<�dkomqloi�e£k¤f�nk¤i¥op�e¦kl§e£¥g¥fh &$3�$3!��<;<�!*)')-%�#!+4)'+1/%�4$#)'(�+'.�-)4$�6#1+'�*#&-!�#+$!4�)'�+�/)'(U$!#-4�.!*/&'!8�3)64&'(*)4$4�3+7!�&'*#!+4&'(/%�!-!#(!.�+4�+�3)$U16$$)'�&446!<��'��)4$)'��'&7!#4&$%"4�'+$&)',&.!�:!'&')�;6#7!%)0�:+%)#4�/+4$�%!+#8�3)64&'(�*)4$4�,!#!�*&$!.�+4�$3!�'6-1!#�)'!�#!+4)'�#!4&.!'$4�-)7!�+,+%8�+'.�-)#!+�)#.+1/!�3)64&'(�,+4�$3!�$)2U#+'M!.�&-2#)7!-!'$�-+%)#4�-)4$�,+'$!.�$)�4!!<��$"4�)'�$3!�-&'.4�)0�-+%)#4�'),�-)#!�$3+'�&$�3+4�1!!'�&'�$3!�2+4$8��4+%4�̈&-1/!��+$/&��8�$3!��+$&)'+/:6/$&0+-&/%�_)64&'(�S)6'*&/"4�7&*!�2#!4&.!'$�)0�()7!#'-!'$�+�+&#4<Y3!%"#!�*)'*!#'!.�1!*+64!�$3!#!"4�+-2/!�!7&.!'*!�)0�+�*)'$&'6!.�'+$&)'+/�43)#$+(!�)0�+�)#.+1/!3)64&'(<�Y3!�/+$!4$��;$+$!�)0�$3!��+$&)'"4�_)64&'(��#!2)#$�0#)-�_+#7+#.��'&7!#4&$%"4�©)&'$�S!'$!#�0)#_)64&'(�;$6.&!4�')$!.�$3+$�+�.!*+.!U/)'(�-6/$&0+-&/%�*)'4$#6*$&)'�1))-�3+4�&'*#!+4!.�$)$+/�)**62&!.#!'$+/�6'&$4�1%�̀b�2!#*!'$8�16$�-+&'/%�+$�$3!�$)2�!'.�)0�$3!�-+#M!$<�Y)$+/�6'&$4�.!!-!.��+�)#.+1/!���



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

 !"#$%&�'(""�#)*%�++�,(- (%#�!.�/(0$*%�$% !/(�1�)*2(�-(/*$%(0�3*"$ *''4�"#*#$ �05-$%&�#)(�'*"#�0( *0(67)$'(�#)(�%5/3(-�!.�(8#-(/('4�'!79$% !/(�-(%#(-�)!5"()!'0"�)*"�&-!7%�34�/!-(�#)*%�:;�,(- (%#<�=)(>;:?�-(,!-#� !% '50(0�#)*#�#)(-(�$"�*�@#-(/(%0!5"�,(%#95,�0(/*%0�.!-�*A!-0*3'(�-(%#*'�)!5"$%&<@B!�*"� $#$("�)*2(�"(*- )(0�.!-�7*4"�#!�&(%(-*#(�/!-(�*A!-0*3'(�)!5"$%&6�,*-C$%&�)*"�(/(-&(0�*"�*%�(*"4#*-&(#<�D*-C$%&�-*#$!"�*-(�"$/,'(�#!� )*%&(6�*%0�#)(�,-! (""�0!("%E#�'(*0�#!�.5#5-(� !"#�!3'$&*#$!%"�'$C("53"$0$("�0!<=)*#�7*"�#)(�*,,-!* )�#*C(%�34�B(*##'(�#)$"�4(*-<�@=)(�%5/3(-�!%(�$""5(�.* $%&�!5-� $#4�$"�#)(�'* C�!.)!5"$%&�!,#$!%"�*%0�*A!-0*3$'$#4<�F(E-(�'!!C$%&�#!�-(/!2(�*%4�3*--$(-"�#!�#)(�"5,,'4�!.�)!5"$%&6�*%0,*-C$%&�$"�!%(�!.�#)(/6@�"*4"�B*/5('�G""(.*6�#)(�0$-( #!-�!.�B(*##'(E"�HI (�!.�D'*%%$%&�*%0�J!//5%$#4K(2('!,/(%#<LMNMOP�QRSTU�NUVWXW�YSVZMOP�QRSTU=)(�#4,$ *'�/(0$*%�,*-C$%&�-([5$-(0�.!-�*�#7!93(0-!!/�*,*-#/(%#�$%�/*%4�'*-&(�\!-#)�G/(-$ *%� $#$("$"�/!-(�#)*%�)*'.�#)(�"$](�!.�#)(�*,*-#/(%#�$#"('.<

Q̂XVTU_�QÙa�b̂ ĉdSOe�PVSRaMTRSVZMOPfT̂dfghijklm�no�pnqmros�knmlmD'*%%(-"E�")$t$%&�"#-*#(&$("�#!7*-0�,*-C$%&�*-(�%!7�"5,,!-#(0�34�*�&-!7$%&�3!04�!.�(2$0(% (�#)*#,*-C$%&�-([5$-(/(%#"�%(&*#$2('4�$/,* #�/5'#$.*/$'4�)!5"$%&6�(",( $*''4�*A!-0*3'(�,-!u( #"<v%�*�%5#")(''6�35$'0$%&�,*-C$%&� !"#"�*�'!#6�*%0�#)*#� !"#�5"5*''4�(%0"�5,�-*$"$%&�#(%*%#�-(%#"<



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

 !"#$%&�&'%(#)&�#*(#+!')�',!'�&%"-!+)�.!"/#*0�1$'�&.!+)&�+$&'�%.2!"(&�$-�345666�)!+,5�2,#1)�!7$8)90"$%*(.!"/#*0�0!"!0)&�!8)"!0)�!"$%*(�3:45666�.)"�&.!+)�!*(�7)1$290"$%*(�0!"!0)&�!8)"!0)�!"$%*(�3;45666�.)"&.!+)<�=,!'�+!*�'"!*&1!')�#*'$�,#0,)"�")*'5�.!"'#+%1!"1>�#*�7#0�+#'#)&<�=2$�?@AB�%"7!*�.1!**#*0�."$-)&&$"&&'%(#)(�?<C<�")*'!1�(!'!�!*(�").$"')(�#*�',)�D$%"*!1�E$%&#*0�F$1#+>�G)7!')�#*�:6HI�',!'�0!"!0)�.!"/#*0'>.#+!11>�+$&'&�")*')"�,$%&),$1(&�!.."$J#K!')1>�3HL:�.)"�K$*',5�$"�!*�!((#'#$*!1�HM�.)"+)*'�$-�!�,$%&#*0%*#'N&�")*'<�O',)"�&'%(#)&�,!8)�-$%*(�)8)*�1!"0)"�#K.!+'&�$*�")*'&<P=,!'�+!*�7)�!�&#0*#Q+!*'�7%"()*�$*�1$2)"9#*+$K)�,$%&),$1(&5P�&!>&�G!8#(�R!"+#!5�.$1#+>�(#")+'$"�$-�',)=)"*)"�@)*')"�-$"�E$%&#*0�S**$8!'#$*�!'�',)�?*#8)"&#'>�$-�@!1#-$"*#!TU)"/)1)><@,!*0#*0�',!'�)V%!'#$*�+!*�,)1.�."$(%+)�!((#'#$*!1�!W$"(!71)�,$%&#*0<�=,!'N&�!�&+)*!"#$�!+'%!11>.1!>#*0�$%'�#*�F$"'1!*(5�O")0$*<S*�:6HI�',)�F$"'1!*(�@$KK%*#'>�X)#*8)&'K)*'�S*#'#!'#8)&5�!�*$*."$Q'�()8)1$.)"�!*(�K!*!0)"�$-�1$29#*+$K)�,$%&#*05�7)0!*�.1!**#*0�!�;49%*#'�&)*#$"�,$%&#*0�."$D)+'�+!11)(�Y!-$%">�@$%"'<�B'�',)�'#K)5F$"'1!*(N&�+$()�")V%#")(�."$8#(#*0�Q8)�.!"/#*0�&.!+)&�-$"�',)�."$D)+'5�!*(�',)�()8)1$.)"�2!&�&'"%001#*0'$�Q*(�Q*!*+#*0<�U%'�1!')�',!'�>)!"5�',)�+#'>�+,!*0)(�#'&�.!"/#*0�")V%#")K)*'&5�!*(�Y!-$%">�*$2�$*1>*))(&�'$�."$8#()�'2$�&.!+)&<Z,#1)�',!'�+,!*0)�($)&*N'�&))K�1#/)�K%+,5�#'�!11$2)(�',)�()8)1$.K)*'�'$�7)�'$'!11>�")()&#0*)(<�B�Q"&'9[$$"�.!"/#*0�0!"!0)�2!&�*$�1$*0)"�*))()(5�&$�',)�7%#1(#*0�,!&�7))*�&+!1)(�7!+/�-"$K�Q8)�&'$"#)&�'$�-$%"&'$"#)&5�2,#+,�1)(�'$�+$&'9&!8#*0�"#..1)�)W)+'&<�P=,#&�,!&�K!()�',)�."$D)+'�Q*!*+#!11>�-)!&#71)5P�&!>&F@XSN&�\%1#!�])'̂<C,)�!((&_�PZ)�.")-)"�'$�7%#1(�,$%&)&�-$"�.)$.1)5�*$'�+!"&<�Z,)*�#'�+$K)&�($2*�'$�+,$$&#*0�&.!+)�-$".)$.1)�$"�.!"/#*05�2)N")�0$#*0�'$�+,$$&)�.)$.1)<PBW$"(!71)�,$%&#*0�."$D)+'&5�2#',�',)#"�1$2)"�")*'�")8)*%)�&'")!K&5�!")�!1")!(>�+,!11)*0#*0�'$�Q*!*+)<�C$.!"/#*0�#&�!*�#*+")!&#*01>�/)>�-!+'$"�#*�2,)',)"�$"�*$'�!�."$D)+'�2$"/&�Q*!*+#!11><�U%'�'$�()8)1$.)"&5")(%+#*0�$"�")K$8#*0�.!"/#*0�")V%#")K)*'&�($)&�*$'�K)!*�)1#K#*!'#*0�.!"/#*0�&%..1><�S'�&#K.1>�!11$2&()8)1$.)"&�'$�()+#()�,$2�K!*>�&.!+)&�'$�7%#1(�7!&)(�$*�K!"/)'�!*(�1$+!'#$*!1�()K!*(<PSN8)�,!(�()8)1$.)"&�&!>�'$�K)5�NE)>5�S�+$%1(�K!/)�',#&�()!1�2$"/�#-�S�$*1>�,!(�'$�7%#1(�!�0!"!0)�',!'N&�$*)9',#"(�&K!11)"5NP�&!>&�R")0�Z#11)''5�+,#)-�)+$*$K#&'�$-�X)!1F!0)5�!�."$8#()"�$-�."$.)"'>�K!*!0)K)*'&$̀2!")�!*(�&)"8#+)&<�PB*>�2!>�>$%�+!*�'!/)�+$&'&�$%'�$-�',)�()!1�#&�K)!*#*0-%1<Pabcd�edfghd�ij�klm�mlkaZ,)*�#'�+$K)&�'$�%'#1#̂#*0�.!"/#*0�'$�!%0K)*'�.1!**#*0�!*(�()8)1$.K)*'�.$1#+#)&5�?<C<�+#'#)&�&'#11�,!8)�!1$*0�2!>�'$�0$�'$�+!'+,�%.�'$�&$K)�n%"$.)!*�+$%*')".!"'&<�o%"#+,5�C2#'̂)"1!*(p�@$.)*,!0)*5�G)*K!"/p!*(�E!K7%"05�R)"K!*>5�,!8)�!11�+!..)(�',)�'$'!1�*%K7)"�$-�!11$2!71)�.!"/#*0�&.!+)&�#*�',)#"�+#'#)&<O&1$5�q$"2!>�r�2,)")�!�K!D$"#'>�$-�+)*')"9+#'>�")&#()*'&�($*N'�$2*�+!"&�r�#&�.%"&%#*0�.1!*&�'$�")K$8)�!11.!"/#*0�&.!+)&�-"$K�',!'�(#&'"#+'5�'$�7)�").1!+)(�7>�#*&'!11!'#$*&�&%+,�!&�.$+/)'�.!"/&�!*(�.,$*)9+,!"0#*0�&'"))'�-%"*#'%")<B*(�1!&'�>)!"�',)�1!"0)&'�+#'>�#*�q$"',�BK)"#+!5�])J#+$�@#'>5�)1#K#*!')(�.!"/#*0�")V%#")K)*'&�-$"�*)2()8)1$.K)*'&�+#'>2#()�!*(�#*&')!(�#K.$&)(�1#K#'&�$*�',)�*%K7)"�$-�*)2�&.!+)&�!11$2)(5�().)*(#*0�$*',)�'>.)�!*(�&#̂)�$-�7%#1(#*0<S*�',)�?<C<5�,$2)8)"5�.!"/#*0�#&�&'#11�&!+")(�#*�K!*>�.1!+)&<�C$K)'#K)&�2,)*�.!"/#*0�")(%+'#$*&�!")."$.$&)(�-$"�!�+)"'!#*�%"7!*�(#&'"#+'�$"�!�&.)+#Q+�*)2�()8)1$.K)*'5�*)!"7>�")&#()*'&�+$K.1!#*�#'�2#11-$"+)�*)2�")*')"&�'$�.!"/�$*�',)#"�")&#()*'#!1�&'"))'&<�U)+!%&)�&$�K!*>�.)$.1)�&'#11�$2*�+!"&5�',)�q!'#$*!1]%1'#-!K#1>�E$%&#*0�@$%*+#1N&�:6HM�Y#*0&1)>�X)*')"�F")-)")*+)&�X).$"'�"!*/)(�.!"/#*0�!&�")*')"&N&)+$*(9K$&'�()&#")(�+$KK%*#'>�!K)*#'>5�7),#*(�$*1>�+)119.,$*)�")+).'#$*<q$'�&%"."#&#*01>5�',)*5�&$K)�.1!+)&�!")�&'#11�()K!*(#*0�K$")�.!"/#*05�*$'�1)&&<�S*�U$&'$*5�-$"�#*&'!*+)5!*�#*[%J�$-�*)2�")&#()*'&�+1!K$"#*0�-$"�.!"/#*0�#*�',)�7$$K#*0�C$%',�U$&'$*�*)#0,7$",$$(�1)(�'$$̂*#*0�+$()�+,!*0)&�#*�:6HI�',!'�")V%#")�()8)1$.)"&�'$�7%#1(�'2$9',#"(&�K$")�$W9&'"))'�.!"/#*0�',!*7)-$")<q)8)"',)1)&&5�',)�K$8)K)*'�'$�")(%+)�.!"/#*0�#&�*$2�2#()&.")!(5�#*8$18#*0�7#0�+#'#)&�!*(�&K!11�'$2*&5%"7!*�(#&'"#+'&�!*(�&%7%"7!*�1$+!1)&5�!W$"(!71)�,$%&#*0�!*(�K!"/)'9"!')�%*#'&<�PS'N&�.")''>�2)11�!++).')(*$2�',!'�")-$"K#*0�.!"/#*0�K#*#K%K&�#&�!�0$$(�2!>�'$�K!*!0)�+#'#)&5P�&!>&�=$*>�\$"(!*5�-$%*()"�$-F$"'1!*()"&�-$"�F!"/#*0�X)-$"K5�2,#+,�,!&�!(8$+!')(�-$"�7)'')"�.!"/#*0�.$1#+#)&<�P=,)�()7!')�#&�*$22$*<P=,)�1)&&$*&�-$"�.1!**)"&�!")5�Q"&'5�'$�7)�$.)*�'$�!(D%&'#*0�.!"/#*0�.$1#+#)&�#*�̂$*#*0�+$()&�!*(+$K."),)*&#8)�.1!*&�!*(5�&)+$*(5�'$�7)�[)J#71)�#*�+"!̀#*0�*)2�.!"/#*0�1#K#'&�().)*(#*0�$*�',)�1$+!'#$*$"�()&#")(�$%'+$K)5�&%+,�!&�&.%""#*0�!W$"(!71)�,$%&#*0�()8)1$.K)*'<



��������������	 �
��
���
���������

������������������������������������������
��
��
��������� ���

� � !""#$%&&'''()*+,-../(+.0&10,23+*456*443471$$.+3*"3.48�9 � !""#$%&&'''(:.;";-,(+.0&;$,2&10,23+*456*443471$$48�< � !""#$%&&"'3"",2(+.0&151=56*443478> � !""#%&&34$"*72*0(+.0&*0,23+*4#6*44347*$$.+3*"3.48�? � !""#$%&&'''(634/,@34(+.0&+.0#*4:&ABBCD&8
EFGGHIJKKLIMNOIPQRGQSITRUTROVWPKVXYVZ[YP\YS]̂N__̀`̀abYcIYS]N_dêaefbH\YS]fgeh̀NbiPGYS]̂ègfbVZYS]̂ ĝ̂_êeefaN̂_ad̂`̂bLYY]NagdNNfgd_g_hh̀afgabQVS]Nhdĥ f̂̀g̀_NfbWHYS]d̂ĝa_SfjkfNQjedNkj̀SSVjV̀gg̀ǸdS_̂abWHSG]Nhdĥ f̂̀g̀_̂ b̂GPIGH]_Nddha_gdNbG\G]l_eSGl ŜNGl k̂l_eSPQl ŜaN̂l k̂l_eFVbImIG\G]l_enVl ŜN̂dh̀Nf_hfl k̂l_enXl ŜoTS

pqI�MT�LHSQGT�WLR�HWXYVYTIr�MT�QI�HXQccTRI�cTTS�GW�XTQRc�iRWP�GFT�HQIG�QcS�QSsLIGrp�IQmI�tTQGGXT�HXQccYc\SYRTVGWR�qIITiQO�puT�VWcIGQcGXm�cTTS�GW�GMTQZ�WLR�HWXYVYTI�QcS�iQVT�GFT�VFQXXTc\TI�Wi�MFQGvI�cWGcTVTIIQRYXm�MWRZYc\O�oWRT�WwTc�GFQc�cWGr�GFTRTvI�IY\cYxVQcG�IHQVT�STSYVQGTS�GW�GFT�VQR�GFQG�YI�cWGLGYXYyTSOpzT{RTm�tHYUQZr�Q�PQRZTG�RTITQRVF�SYRTVGWR�Yc�ILkLRkQc�|QcIQI�}YGmr�oYIIWLRYr�YI�Qc�QMQRSjMYccYc\�MRYGTRIHTVYQXYyYc\�Yc�RTQX�TIGQGT�HXQccYc\r�STUTXWHPTcGr�QcS�STPW\RQHFYV�GRTcSIO~����~���q�q�|cWMXTS\TkQIT�}WXXTVGYWcr�p�TGFYcZYc\��{jtGRTTG��QRZYc\��TnLYRTPTcGIEKZcWMXTS\TkQITKHQRZYc\RTnLYRTPTcGI�pO�QRUQRS��cYUTRIYGm�zWYcG�}TcGTR�iWR��WLIYc\�tGLSYTIv��FT�tGQGT�Wi�GFT��QGYWcvI��WLIYc\�_dNgEFGGHJKKFsVFIOFQRUQRSOTSLKIGQGTjcQGYWcIjFWLIYc\j_dNg�O}TcGTR�iWR��TY\FkWRFWWS��TVFcWXW\mr�ptGQXXTS��LGJ��WM��PHGm��QRZYc\�tHQVTI��YPYcYIF��TY\FkWRFWWSq{WRSQkYXYGm�EFGGHJKKkYGOXmK_oRdk�t�pOtGRWc\��WMcI�ZTTHI�GRQVZ�Wi�HRW\RTII�Wc�HQRZYc\�PYcYPLP�RTPWUQXI�QVRWII�GFT��OtOEFGGHJKKkYGOXmK_}NGgaZaafadd�O� ������������ ��.7��4� &6.734&�4,�"�&8 �.4"*+"��$� &+;$".0,2$,2�3+,&8 523�*+:�5.63+:� &*#**"*76*4+,&#23�*+:(!"08��A AB�151(�166�¡37!"$�¡,$,2�,@� &*#**"*76*4+,&+.#:237!"(!"08�¢�523�*+:�5.63+:� !""#$%&&#6*44347(.27&#23�*+:&8�¢�1@�,2"3$,� &*@�,2"3$,&8



����������	��
	�����������������	������������������	��������������������
	��������	��������	������	���	������� !" #�$%�&'&()*+,-./0,12�34,5*6�714�,20416890,12�12�0:*�;4-0�6/<�17�0:*�=>=?�@,22*-10/�.*+,-./0,A*�-*--,12,-�B41/6*4�0:/2�/2<�*C,-0,2+�-0/0*�4*D8,4*5*20�4*+/46,2+�0:*�.19/.�34**530,12�17�3/4E,2+4*D8,4*5*20-F�GH�I"HJ�&K%�L�HJ�GM" ��"N�O�PQ�RSTUHH�"VWXUYZ�O�X[�"�V �YY�\WH]� �H\��NW�V WMWN��OUY�̂_�WVX�G̀� �_" aUHb�c\N%d�eOU\O�O��UHN�H[Y�NW�UHN W[!\��NOUY�X�bUYX"NÙ��Y�YYUWHJ�fO��V WVWY�[��UXXeW!X[�V WOU�UN�\UNU�Y�] WM�UMVWYUHb�MUHUM!M�V" aUHb� �g!U �M�HNY�NO"N�YV�\U]#�NO��H!M�� W]�WhSYN ��N�V" aUHb�YV"\�Y�H��[�[�]W �"XX� �YU[�HNU"X%�\WMM� \U"X%�W �UH[!YN U"X�V WV� NU�YeUNOUH�UNY�i! UY[U\NUWH��j\�VN�]W �[UY"�UXUN#�V" aUHb�YV"\�YJ�k���
������	�������k����
�����	��fO��R�"b!��UY�\WMMUNN�[�NW�V �Y� ̀UHb�XW\"X�"!NOW UN#�NW�M"a��[�\UYUWHY�" W!H[�V" aUHb�"N�NO�XW\"X�X�̀�XJ�lOUX��YWM��\UNU�Y%�UH\X![UHb�TUHH�"VWXUY�"H[�L"UHN�_"!X%�O"̀���XUMUH"N�[�V" aUHbMUHUM!MY%�NOWY��[�\UYUWHY�e� ��M"[��"N�NO��XW\"X�X�̀�X�eUNO�\WMM!HUN#�UHV!NJ�mH� �YVWHY��NW"� �\�HN�LN" �f U�!H���[UNW U"X�UH�eOU\O�NO��n[UNW U"X�oW" [�\"M��W!N�UH�]"̀W �W]�NO���UXX%�R�"b!�_ �YU[�HN�I�HH#�T"j�e WN��"�X�NN� �NW�NO���[UNW %�eOU\O�U[�HNUp�[�Y�̀� "X�a�#�VWUHNY�"Y�NW�eO#NO���UXX�UY�\WH\� HUHb�]W �NO��R�"b!��"H[�UNY�M�M�� YJ�fOWY��VWUHNY�UH\X![�q�" S �"\OUHb�V ��MVNUWH�W]�\UNU�Y�NW��HY! ��MUHUM!M�V" aUHb�"̀"UX"�UXUN#�eUNOW!N� �b" [�NWN "HYUN�"̀"UX"�UXUN#�W �e"Xa"�UXUN#�[W�Y�HWN�M"a��Y�HY��]W ��̀� #�\UN#�UH�W! �YN"N�Jr�MẀUHb�\UN#�"!NOW UN#�NW��HY! ��V" aUHb�"̀"UX"�UXUN#�"H[�\�[UHb�NO"N�"!NOW UN#�NW[�̀�XWV� Y�eOW�" ��V UM" UX#�\WH\� H�[�"�W!N�V" aUHb�]W �NO�U �UH[ÙU[!"X�V Wi�\NY� �MẀ�Y"�\UN#sY�"�UXUN#�NW�\WHYU[� �V" aUHb�"H[�N "HYUN�"̀"UX"�UXUN#�eUNOUH�NO���HNU ��\UN#�eO�H\WHYU[� UHb�"�V Wi�\NJfO���UXX�Y�NY�NO��YN"b��]W �VWYYU�X��!H[� �!UX[UHb�W]�V" aUHb�"H[�Y!�Y�g!�HN�V" aUHbYVUXXẀ� �UHNW�Y!  W!H[UHb�YN ��NY�NO"N�" ��HWN�[�YUbH�[�NW�"\\WMMW["N��[�HY��N "t\�W V" aUHbJT"H#�\UNU�Y�"X �"[#�V ẀU[��u�jU�UXUN#�WH�V" aUHb� �g!U �M�HNY�]W �\� N"UH�N#V�Y�W]V WV� NU�Y�UH\X![UHb�"hW ["�X��OW!YUHb�"H[�YM"XX��!YUH�YY�YJr�"[�NO��LN" �f U�!H��n[UNW U"X�oW" [sY�VWYUNUWH�WH�NO��_�WVX��G̀� �_" aUHb�c\NJr�"[�R�"b!��_ �YU[�HN�I�HH#�T"jsY�X�NN� �NW�NO���[UNW � �b" [UHb�NO��_�WVX��G̀� �_" aUHb�c\NJ



����������	�
	���	���	�	�������	������	����	���������	�����	�����	�����	�������������	������	�� ���	�!"#$�	���	���	���%��	&�
��'	!�� ��%	�	�����	����	'�'�'���%��	��(���'����	��(���	����������	��	����	'���	���%��	������	����	�������	 ������)	���'	��������	���	����	�
	�������	�������	���	����)	
��	�������	�����)�	���	'��������	��������'���	�
	�'���	���������*	����������	����	�����	����	���	���	 ����	����	���� ����������	��	����	���	���%��	����	���)	���'	����������	
��	����	�������'���*+����	������	�������	���
����	���	+�����	����	������	���%��	����'����	����������	������	����'����	�	�'���	��	�����	 ��	�	��,��	��	�����	������*	�
	�������	�	���������	���������	+���	���%��	-��	 ����	��	���	��������	����'����	�
	�����	�������)	�����������%��	�	���	������)*-�	���	����	����	���	�
	���	.�����/�	����	�������	 �	 ��	�������	��	��������	
��	�����	������� ���	�	��'��	��	�����	�������	��������	���%��*	0�	���������	��)	�������	��	�����	���	������	����������	
	���)	����	��������	��������	���	���*&���	'���	�� �	�������*1234	567	89:234;9<=>?@A	B?CDEFGGEHIJ	J@KL@M@>E=E?N@	O	P@Q@L=A	J@A=E?G>M	R=>=C@LST#UV	WXUYUWZ#	��	SX$$V	ZW#YUUWW�����
���[�'�*���



�

�

����������	
������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"�#$%�#&#'� ������������� � � � � � �������������()*+#),+*,*-�� � � � � � � � ���������./�������0���.�!�"+.���1��2�� �3453����6�7�������8	�
����9�:;<=>?<�@A<B�;CBDEFGH�6��6��
�IJKL�MNO�PQL�RJSSLTNPU�VLWJTXUPYOL�PN�ZYKZ�PQL�[OLU\T�NS�SL]�ZONQJ[JPJNST̂�ZOLT_OJZPJNST̂�US̀�ZOLLKZPJNST�NS�_JPJLT���ab1�c�defb���"%�a��1�g2�!�h���.�ijhe+k�����l���mn��������!� l������o�����m� �o�������.��pqrstur�vwrx�qyxz{|}~�txsts�yu���y���s�u��l!�.����������m��!�2�2�������.��!��/������m���m���� ���.��l�!���������m�����.��!���22 �����m1���p��r��syu{�{s|�s���xry�rx��{||r�s�y��{�{r��{����xs|}u��y}y{|�����{��z{|��s��{|�x��{s|�s|���r�y�{u{���s������������������������m��������!2������y��{���r����sx���r{x��s���|{�{r��~��y{���������r���{wr��{xr��sx��xy�ur��qr�rx�s|��p�{�{r��yuxry����ywr���r�� �.�!��"�������2������l�!�����2���2 2m�����.�"��.��m�%������.�m��!����l!��2l��������������� �.�!��"�����!�m��.��o�m����o�!m��"������22 �����m����� !�m����1�����m����%��.�m�l!�l�m����m�l!�2�m�������.��������.���/.����m��������!�k�����l���m��m�� ��2�������"��������!�k� ������e���%�k��!.���%��!�k�.��2��1�e����.������m����k� ������e���%�k��!.���%�����k�.��2������������!��.�2m��o�m1�e����"%�����2 �.����/.���/��.�o�������m�������!�2��.������m��� !������m����!����������.�������!����m����/�����.��!�������m�����.��2��!��o�!m m��!����!�k����m���1�����#&#$%��.������m��� !����o����������o�!�2���m�2 �.�����2l��2��������!�ml������1�b.��#&#'�m�mm��������m���������� m������m ll�!������.�m����22 �����m�������.�!/�m���������!����������.����m��m1�c�mm��������������������m���������� !��ka�m"m��2f�.�m��m.� �������.��l!��!����m���!��.��#&#'�m�mm���1���/��y|�y�r��y|����su���{�ry���y|��y{��~�� �����IQL��NUXJPJNS�NM��OLUPLO�RJSSLTNPU��JPJLT�JT�U�SNSZONMJP̂�SNSZUOPJTUS�Ù N_U_¡�NOWUSJ¢UPJNS�PQUP�OLZOLTLSPT�_JPJLT�NYPTJ̀L�NM�PQL�I]JS��JPJLT�KLPONZNXJPUS�UOLU£�IQL��NUXJPJNS�L̀Y_UPLT�XLWJTXUPNOT�U[NYP�JTTYLT�JKZNOPUSP�PN��OLUPLO�RJSSLTNPU£�¤JTJP�PQL���R��NSXJSL�UP�WOLUPLOKS_JPJLT£NOW�US̀�MNXXN]�YT�NS�I]JPPLO�¥WOLUPLOKS_JPJLT£��



§ 150.500 PURPOSE OF OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS.

   Regulation of off-street parking and loading spaces in the zoning code is to alleviate or prevent congestion of the public
right-of-way and so to promote the safety and general welfare of the public by establishing minimum requirements for off-
street parking, loading and unloading from motor vehicles in accordance with the utilization of various parcels of land and
structures. All applications for an occupancy certificate shall be accompanied by a site plan drawn to scale and dimensioned
indicating the location of off-street parking and loading spaces in compliance with the following requirements:

   (A)   Exempted. Buildings or structures for which a permit has been issued prior to the effective date of the zoning code,
but for which work has not been completed, shall be exempt from the stated parking requirements if the structure or building
is completed within six (6) months after the above stated date.

   (B)   Existing parking not to be reduced. Existing off-street parking spaces and loading spaces on the effective date of the
zoning code shall not be reduced in number unless said number exceeds the requirements set forth herein for a similar new
use.

   (C)   Damaged or destroyed buildings. Should a building, structure or use in existence on the effective date of the zoning
code be damaged or destroyed by fire or other cause, it may be reestablished except that in doing so any off-street parking
or loading which existed must be retained and should plans be effected for enlarging the floor area, seating capacity or other
facilities which would affect the parking or loading requirements, the parking lot or loading area shall be enlarged
accordingly.

   (D)   Yards. Parking areas in B-2 districts shall be set back from all property lines a minimum of five (5) feet or as allowed
per site plan approval. Other parking areas in other districts shall be subject to front yard setback requirements in
accordance with the district in which the use is so located.

   (E)   Floor area. The term FLOOR AREA for the purpose of calculating the number of off-street parking spaces shall mean
the sum of all floor areas in a building as calculated from the outside dimensions of the building. It shall not include areas
used primarily for non-public purposes such as storage, incidental repair, offices of building management or maintenance,
toilets or rest rooms, utilities, or dressing, fitting, or alteration rooms.

   (F)   Benches in places of public assembly. In stadiums, sport arenas, churches, and other places of public assembly in
which patrons or spectators occupy benches, pews, or other similar seating facilities, each twenty-two (22) inches of such
seating facilities shall be counted as one (1) seat for the purpose of determining requirements for off-street parking facilities
under the zoning code.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010)

§ 150.501 DESIGN AND MAINTENANCE OF OFF-STREET PARKING AREA.

   (A)   Access. Parking areas shall be designed so as to provide adequate means of access to a public alley or street. Such
driveway access shall not exceed twenty-four (24) feet in width for residential districts and for other districts shall be allowed
pursuant to site plan approval by the city. Properties within residential districts shall be limited to two (2) accesses and a
minimum of six (6) feet is required between accesses. Accesses shall be located so as to cause the least interference with
traffic movement and shall be no closer than two (2) feet from side lot lines, except for those properties with an approved
zero (0) foot lot line.

   (B)   Size of parking spaces. Each parking space shall be not less than nine (9) feet wide and nineteen (19) feet in length
exclusive of an adequately designed system of access drives.

   (C)   Drive aisles. Drive aisles shall be no less than twenty six (26) feet in width.

   (D)   Fractional spaces. When the determining of the number of off-street parking spaces results in a fraction, each
fraction of one-half (1/2) or more shall constitute another space.

   (E)   Signs. No signs shall be located in any parking area except as necessary for orderly operation of traffic movement.

   (F)   Surfacing. All new parking areas and driveways shall be hard surfaced in order to control dust and drainage.
Allowable surfacing materials include bituminous, concrete, or other materials as approved by the Public Works Director.
Parking areas designed for fewer than three (3) vehicles shall be exempt from the hard surfacing requirement; however, all
parking areas and driveways shall be hard surfaced a minimum of fifty (50) feet as measured from the nearest edge of the
public roadway. If the public roadway is not hard surfaced, the driveway need not be hard surfaced until such time that the
property owner is given notice to do so by the city. Notice will be given by the city within thirty (30) days of the public
roadway being hard surfaced. The notice shall specify a required completion date which shall not be less than three (3)
months nor more than one (1) year from the date of the notice. At any time that a property owner installs a new garage,
adds on to an existing garage or replaces a garage, the hard surfacing requirement shall be enforced. Plans for surfacing
and drainage are subject to city review and approval. A surfacing deposit, in an amount set forth by the City Council from
time to time, shall be paid to the city at the time of building permit issuance for any property owner developing a vacant
property, installing a new garage, adding on to an existing garage or replacing an old garage. The payment shall be made in
the form of cash, letter of credit, or other means as approved by the city. Upon completion of the hard surfacing, the deposit
shall be refunded. Surfacing shall be completed within one (1) year of building permit issuance or the deposit shall be
forfeited.

   (G)   Lighting. Any lighting used to illuminate an off-street parking area shall be so designed and arranged as to reflect the



light away from adjacent property.

   (H)   Curbing and landscaping. All open off-street parking areas designed to have head-in parking along the property line
shall provide a bumper curb not less than three (3) feet from the side property line or guard of normal bumper height not
less than one (1) foot from the side property line. When said area is for six (6) spaces or more, a curb or fence not over six
(6) feet in height shall be erected along the front yard set back line with grass or planting occupying the space between the
sidewalk and curb or fence.

   (I)   Fence required. When a required off-street parking area for six (6) or more vehicles is located adjacent to an R district
a fence of adequate design, not over six (6) feet in height nor less than three and one-half (3-1/2) feet in height, shall be
erected along the R district property line. Landscaping techniques approved by the city may be used to accomplish a buffer
in lieu of fencing between the parking lot and the R district.

   (J)   Maintenance of off-street parking space. It shall be the joint responsibility of the operator and owner of the principal
use, uses or building to maintain, in a neat and adequate manner, the parking area, access ways, landscaping and required
fences.

   (K)   R districts. Required off-street parking spaces/areas in the R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4 districts shall be on the same lot as
the principal building.

   (L)   Commercial vehicle parking. Off-street parking facilities accessory to residential use shall be utilized solely for the
parking of passenger automobiles or one (1) truck not to exceed one and one-half (1-1/2) ton capacity for each dwelling unit.
Under no circumstance shall required parking facilities accessory to residential structures be used for the storage of
commercial vehicles or for the parking of automobiles belonging to the employees, owners, tenants or customers of
business or manufacturing establishments.

   (M)   Prohibited use of parking area. Required off-street parking space in any district shall not be utilized for open storage
of goods or for the storage of recreational vehicles and campers and vehicles which are inoperable or for sale or rent.

   (N)   Recreational vehicle parking. Off street parking facilities utilized for recreational vehicles, including but not limited to
RVs, campers and boats, shall have an improved, durable surface.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010) Penalty, see § 150.999

§ 150.502 JOINT PARKING FACILITIES AND CONTROL OF OFF-STREET PARKING.

   (A)   Joint parking facilities. Off-street parking facilities for a combination of mixed buildings, structures or uses may be
provided collectively in any business or industrial district where separate parking facilities for each separate building,
structure or use would be difficult to achieve, provided that the total number of spaces shall equal the sum of the separate
requirements of each use and the maximum distance between any parking space and any principal use is not more than
three hundred (300) feet measured along usual routes of public pedestrian access.

   (B)   Control of off-street parking facilities. When required accessory off-street parking facilities are provided elsewhere
than on the lot in which the principal use served is located, they shall be in the same ownership or control, either by deed or
long-term lease, as the property occupied by such principal use, and the owner of the principal use shall file a recordable
document with the city requiring the owner and his or her heirs and assigns to maintain the required number of off-street
parking spaces during the existence of said principal use.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010)

§ 150.503 MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENTS.

   (A)   Residential uses.

USE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIRED

USE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIRED

Single family, townhouse, condo, two family,
manufactured/mobile Two (2) spaces per dwelling unit

Group home, state licensed residential facility Two (2) spaces for each five (5) beds offered for residence
purposes

Boarding house, bed & breakfast Two (2) spaces plus one (1) for each guest room

Day care facility - Residential
No spaces required when the facility serves no more than
fourteen (14) persons. The dwelling is still subject to the
minimum parking requirements provided in this section

Day care facility - Non-Residential (serving no more
than fourteen (14) persons)

No additional spaces required when facility serves no more than
fourteen (14) persons



Day care facility - Non-Residential (serving fifteen (15)
or more persons)

One (1) space per five (5) persons served based on the facility's
licensed capacity plus one (1) space for each employee or
volunteer on the largest shift plus one (1) space for each
business vehicle

Multi-family structure (excluding senior housing) Two (2) spaces for each unit, one (1) parking space for each
efficiency unit

Senior housing One (1) space per dwelling unit
Apartments attached to businesses Two (2) spaces per unit

 

   (B)   Institutional uses.

 
USE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIRED
Chemical dependent or similar
group home

One (1) space for each three (3) residents plus one (1) for
each staff member

Community center Parking shall be based on the uses within the building

Hospital

One (1) space for each three (3) hospital beds plus one
(1) for each employee on the largest shift. Bassinets shall
not be counted as beds for the purpose of calculating the
number of off-street parking spaces required

 

Institutional group home One (1) space for each four (4) residents allowed by city
code

Library, museum, art gallery One (1) space for each three hundred fifty (350) square
feet of floor area in the principal structure

Nursing home, boarding care home One (1) space for each ten (10) beds plus one (1) for
each employee on the largest shift

Playground, playfield

Two (2) spaces per acres of playground and forty (40)
spaces for each playfield. When a public recreation site
has more than one (1) use designation, the required
parking spaces must be determined for each separately.
The sum of those use requirements shall be the total
number of spaces required.

Post office, parcel delivery service

Ten (10) spaces plus one (1) space for each five hundred
(500) square feet of floor area devoted to office,
processing or service plus one (1) space for each vehicle
customarily kept on the premises

Private club or lodge hall
One (1) space for each three (3) persons allowed within
the maximum occupancy load as established by city,
county or state fire building or health codes

Religious institution

One (1) space for each three (3) seats based on the
design capacity of the main assembly hall. Up to fifty
percent (50%) of the required parking can be provided
through a nonexclusive written agreement with the owner
of another property located within two hundred (200) feet
of an entrance to the religious institution which authorizes
parking during times of worship or events conducted at
the religious facility at times other than usual business
hours on property which is an off-street parking lot which
meets the design requirements of this chapter and
satisfies the parking requirements for the use of the other
property during ordinary business hours during the usual
work week.

School - elementary, junior high Two (2) spaces per classroom
School - high school, post
secondary

One (1) space per staff member on the largest shift plus
one (1) space for each five (5) students

 

   (C)   Commercial uses.

USE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIRED



Bank
One (1) space for each two hundred fifty (250) square feet
of usable floor area

Beauty or barber shop Two (2) spaces per seat plus one (1) space per employee
on the largest shift

Bowling alley

Five (5) spaces per lane. Other uses which are commonly
associated with bowling alleys, such as restaurants and
game rooms, will require additional parking and loading
space, the number of which shall be determined by the
parking requirements for those uses specified in this
section.

Business/trade school
One (1) space per student calculated by reference to the
design of the school structure plus one (1) space for each
classroom

Car wash Stacking for a minimum of three (3) vehicles per wash
bay

Club, lodge

One (1) space for each three (3) seats calculated by
reference to the design of the facility plus one (1) space
for every fifty (50) square feet of customer space in the
dining and or bar areas

Convenience store - with or without
gas pumps

One (1) space per two hundred (200) feet of gross floor
area plus one (1) space per two (2) employees on the
largest shift. Other uses which are commonly associated
with convenience stores, such as car washes, will require
additional parking and/or stacking space, the number of
which shall be determined by the parking requirements for
those uses specified in this section.

Convention/exhibition hall One (1) space for each three (3) seats calculated by
reference to the design of the facility

Fast food establishment - with
seating

One (1) space per three (3) patron seats plus one (1)
space per two (2) employees on the largest shift plus
seven (7) continuous spaces for vehicle stacking when a
drive- through window is provided

Fast food establishment - without
seating

One (1) space per two hundred (200) square feet of gross
floor area plus one (1) space per two (2) employees on
the largest shift plus seven (7) continuous spaces for
vehicle stacking when a drive-through window is provided

 

Food service, bakery One (1) space for each twenty-five (25) square feet of
customer floor area

Funeral home

One (1) space for each five (5) seats plus one space for
each two hundred fifty (250) square feet of floor area not
used for seating. If fixed seats are not provided, the
requirement shall be one (1) space for every thirty five
(35) square feet of seating area

Furniture/home furnishing store
Two parking spaces for each one thousand (1,000)
square feet of gross floor area for customer parking plus
one (1) parking space for each two (2) employees

Golf/archery driving range One (1) space for each target or driving tee

Golf course

Four (4) spaces for each golf hole plus one (1) space for
each two hundred (200) square feet of locker rooms and
clubrooms. If the clubhouse contains dining and/or bar
facilities, the parking requirements shall be the same as
for a restaurant.

Grocery store Four (4) spaces for each one thousand (1,000) square
feet of usable floor area

Hotel, motel

One (1) space for each guestroom. Any other use, such
as restaurant and conference space, requires additional
parking and loading spaces as determined by the parking
requirements for those other uses specified in this
section.

Laundromat, coin operated cleaner One (1) space for each four (4) machines



Medical/dental clinic and/or office Three (3) parking spaces for each staff doctor or dentist

Miniature golf Two (2) spaces per golf hole

Motor vehicle sales establishment
One (1) space for each five hundred (500) square feet of
usable floor area of sales room and two (2) spaces for
each service stall and one (1) for each employee

Motor vehicle service station (full
service)

One (1) space per employee on the largest shift plus
three (3) additional spaces for each service stall

Office One (1) space for every two hundred fifty (250) square
feet of usable floor area

Oil change station One (1) space per employee on the largest shift plus
stacking for two (2) additional vehicles per service stall

 

Open sales / rental lot
One (1) space fore very two thousand five hundred
(2,500) square feet of land which is to be used for sales
and display area

Restaurant, café One (1) space per four (4) patron seats
Retail store (except as otherwise
specified herein)

Four (4) parking spaces for each one thousand (1,000)
square feet of gross floor area

Skating/ice/roller rink One (1) space for every three hundred (300) square feet
of gross floor area

Sports/health club, swimming pool

One space for every two hundred (200) square feet of
non- court area plus two (2) spaces per tennis or racquet
ball court and one (1) space for every fifty (50) square
feet of deck area for a swimming pool

Tavern, dance hall, night club,
lounge

One (1) space per three (3) seats plus one space for
every employee on the largest shift

Theater, auditorium, assembly hall,
meeting hall

One (1) space for every four (4) seats plus one (1) space
for every employee on the largest shift

Veterinary office Three (3) spaces per doctor plus one (1) space per
employee on the largest shift

 

   (D)   Industrial uses.

 
USE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIRED

Industrial/manufacturing establishment

Five (5) spaces plus one (1) space for each
employee on the largest working shift, but not
less than one (1) space per one thousand
(1,000) square feet of gross floor area

Wholesale/warehouse establishment Four (4) spaces plus one (1) for each
employee on the largest working shift

Adult entertainment
One (1) space per employee on the largest
shift plus one (1) space per two hundred fifty
(250) square feet of gross floor area

 

   (E)   If it can be demonstrated by a property owner through market studies or other means that the required off-street
parking requirement is excessive and lesser requirements justifiable, the City Council may reduce the number of required
spaces by passage of a resolution following review by the Planning Commission.

   (F)   Any use not specifically mentioned above shall meet the requirement of the use most clearly related to it as
determined by the Zoning Administrator. If the Zoning Administrator is unable to identify a similar use, a determination shall
be made by the City Council following review by the Planning Commission.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010; Am. Ord. 484, passed 12-21-2021)

§ 150.504 ADJUSTMENT TO OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS IN THE B-1 AND B-2 DISTRICTS.

   (A)   Should an existing building or structure be expanded, the required off-street parking requirements shall be adjusted
upwards accordingly. No adjustment shall be made for downsizing of any building/structure or the change of a business to a
lower zoning use.

   (B)   In the B-1 district, new buildings/structures, expansions of existing businesses, the off-street parking requirements



may be met, upon City Council approval, by providing the actual parking spaces, by obtaining seasonal apartment parking
permits, or by contributing to the City Parking Fund for each space or fraction of a space required. The off-street parking
requirements can be met by any combination of actual spaces, seasonal apartment parking permits and contributed spaces,
provided that the combination is equal to the theoretical amount of spaces required.

   (C)   The amount to be contributed to the City Parking Fund for each required parking space in lieu of an actual space is
five hundred dollars ($500.00) per space.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010)

§ 150.505 OFF-STREET LOADING AND UNLOADING AREAS.

   (A)   Requirements.

      (1)   Location. All required loading berths shall be off-street and shall be located on the same lot as the building or use to
be served. A loading berth shall not be located less than twenty-five (25) feet from the intersection of two (2) street rights-of-
way; nor less than fifty (50) feet from a residential district unless within a building. Loading berths shall not occupy the
required front yard set back space.

      (2)   Size. Unless otherwise specified in the zoning code, a required loading berth shall be not less than ten (10) feet in
width, fifty (50) feet in length and fourteen (14) feet in height, exclusive of aisle and maneuvering space.

      (3)   Access. Each required loading berth shall be located with appropriate means of vehicular access to a street or public
alley in a manner which will least interfere with traffic.

      (4)   Surfacing. All loading berths and access ways shall be improved with a durable material to control the dust and
drainage according to a plan approved by the City Engineer.

   (B)   Accessory use. Any space allocated as a loading berth or access drive so as to comply with the terms of the zoning
code shall not be used for the storage of goods, inoperable vehicles or be included as a part of the space requirements
necessary to meet the off-street parking area.

   (C)   Required minimum berths.

      (1)   Requirements.

         (a)   Non-residential uses having ten thousand (10,000) square feet or more. For ten thousand (10,000) to one
hundred thousand (100,000) square feet floor area, one (1) loading berth; for each additional thirty thousand (30,000) square
feet of floor area or fraction thereof above one-fourth (1/4), one (1) additional loading berth. For a building having twenty
thousand (20,000) square feet or less, the length of the berth may be reduced to twenty-five (25) feet.

         (b)   Retail sales, office public administration building, hospitals, schools, hotels, and similar uses. For such a building
having ten thousand (10,000) to two hundred thousand (200,000) square feet of floor area, one (1) off-street loading berth
fifty (50) feet in length and one (1) berth twenty-five (25) feet in length for each fifty thousand (50,000) square feet or fraction
thereof.

         (c)   Manufacturing, fabrication, warehousing, storing, servicing, and similar establishments. For a building having ten
thousand (10,000) to one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet floor area, one (1) loading berth fifty (50) feet in length
and one (1) additional berth for each additional one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet or fraction thereof above one-
fourth (1/4), and one (1) berth twenty-five (25) feet in length for each thirty-five thousand (35,000) square feet of floor area or
fraction thereof.

      (2)   Other businesses. Upon receiving an application for a particular use a for a parcel or building which is not
adequately provided for by the above categories mentioned and which, in the opinion of the Building Inspector, is to receive
or distribute goods or services which will necessitate the use of trucking to the extent that special consideration should be
given to the request, such application shall be referred to the Council for determination.

(Ord. 395, passed 7-6-2010) Penalty, see § 150.99




